City of Columbia

701 East Broadway, Columbia, Missouri 65201

Agenda ltem Number: B 187-14

Department Source: Community Development - Planning

To: City Council

From: City Manager & Staff

Council Meeting Date: July 7, 2014

Re: The Gates Plat 2 - Annexation, Permanent Zoning (Case #14-80)

Documents Included With This Agenda ltem

Council Memo, Resolution/Ordiance, Exhibits to Ordinance

Supporting documentation includes: Summary of Board/Commission Reports (including maps,
Statement of Intent, zoning exhibits, preliminary plat, variance request, plat of survey), Excerpts from
Minutes

Executive Summary

A request by Tim Crockett, Crockett Engineering (agent) to annex 131.19 acres into the City of
Columbia and apply R-1 (One-Family Dwelling District) and PUD-4 (Planned Unit Development) as
permanent zoning. The subject site is located at the southeast corner of the intersection of Route K
and Old Plank Road. (Case #14-80)

Discussion

The applicant is requesting the annexation of 131.19 acres into the City of Columbia and permanent
zoning of R-1 (One-Family Dwelling District) and PUD-4 (Planned Unit Development) for portions of the
property. The subject property is contiguous with the City's municipal boundary to north and west. A
request seeking approval of the preliminary plat involving the subject site will be considered by the City
Council atits July 21 meeting.

The site is currently unimproved and vacant, and the majority of the property is tree covered. The
County zoning is A-2 (Agriculture) and is consistent with the zoning of other County property to the
east and the south. The applicant is requesting to rezone the property upon to R-1 (One-Family
Dwelling District) and PUD-4 (Planned Unit Development). The proposed residential zoning is
consistent with existing City zoning to the north and west of the subject property.

The R-1 area would include the majority of the property (128.16 acres) and the PUD-4 would be
located on approximately 3 acres at the property’s northwest corner. The PUD-4 would permit up to 4
dwelling units per acre, which would allow a maximum of 12 dwelling units, and is proposed to allow all
R-3 District uses. A PUD development plan that includes additional details must be submitted in the
future prior to development.

Currently, the property receives water service from Consolidated Public Water Supply (CPWSD)
District #1, electric service from Boone County Electric Cooperative, and fire protection from the
Boone County Fire Protection District. Upon annexation the property would be served by the Columbia
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Fire Department per the territorial agreement. Water and electric utility providers would remain
unchanged.

The property is located outside of the urban service area (USA) as indicated in Columbia Imagined;
however, the tract is between two properties that are currently within the USA. The subject property is
within the Cascades pump station service area which was designed to accommodate sanitary flow
from the subject site. Annexation of the subject property would be a natural and orderly addition to the
area currently served by City services.

The forthcoming request for preliminary plat approval identifies and provides for dedication of
additional right-of-way and easement along Route K, Old Plank Road, and High Point Lane needed to
accommodate planned and future roadway construction in the area. The Capital Improvement
Program (CIP) identifies the realignment of the intersection of Sinclair-Old Plank Road and Route K as
one of the improvements for which the additional right of way is needed. The dedications will be by
separate document submitted concurrently with the requested approval of the preliminary plat.

At its meeting on June 5, 2014, the Planning and Zoning Commission voted unanimously (8-0) to
recommend approval of the proposed permanent zoning. The applicant’s agent was present and gave
an overview of the request. Commissioners discussed the use of the common lots and access to the
development. Two individuals spoke during the public hearing, one with concerns regarding street
lighting on High Point Lane, and the other had no concerns.

A copy of the staff report (including locator maps, Statement of Intent, zoning exhibits, preliminary plat,
variance request, and plat of survey) is attached, as are the excerpts from the meeting's minutes.

Fiscal Impact

Short-Term Impact: None

Long-Term Impact: Anticipated long-term costs include public infrastructure maintenance (e.g roads
and sewer) and demands for services (e.g. public safety). Once residential development begins, the
City of Columbia will receive additional tax and fee revenues for maintenance of infrastructure and

services provided.

The CIP identifies the intersection of Sinclair-Old Plank & Route K for improvement within 6-10 years.
At this time, all roadways bordering the subject property are under the jurisdiction of other
governmental bodies; however, the City may in the future be responsible for their
construction/maintenance. In the event additional properties along Old Plank Road, Route K, and High
Point Lane are considered for annexation, the costs of roadway construction/maintenance and possibly
additional infrastructure investments may be weighed against the benefits of additional revenues. No
additional requests for annexation in the area are under review at this time.
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Vision, Strategic & Comprehensive Plan Impact

Vision Impact: Development
Strategic Plan Impact: Not Applicable
Comprehensive Plan Impact. Land Use & Growth Management

Suggested Council Action

Approval of the proposed permanent zoning of R-1 and PUD-4 as recommended by Planning and
Zoning Commission.

Legislative History

None.
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Ordinance No. Council Bill No. B 187-14

AN ORDINANCE

extending the corporate limits of the City of Columbia, Missouri,
by annexing property located on the southeast corner of Route
K and Old Plank Road; directing the City Clerk to give notice of
the annexation; placing the property annexed in District R-1
and District PUD-4; setting forth a condition for approval;
approving the statement of intent; and fixing the time when this
ordinance shall become effective.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLUMBIA, MISSOURI, AS
FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. The City Council hereby finds that a verified petition was filed with the
City on June 10, 2014, requesting the annexation of land which is contiguous and compact
to the existing corporate limits of the City and which is described in Section 4 of this
ordinance. The petition was signed by John and Susan Williamson, husband and wife, the
sole owner(s) of the fee interest of record in the land proposed to be annexed. A public
hearing was held concerning this matter on July 7, 2014. Notice of this hearing was
published more than seven days prior to the hearing in a newspaper of general circulation
gualified to publish legal matters. Atthe public hearing all interested persons, corporations
and political subdivisions were permitted to present evidence regarding the proposed
annexation.

SECTION 2. The Council determines that the annexation is reasonable and
necessary to the proper development of the City and that the City has the ability to furnish
normal municipal services to the area to be annexed within a reasonable time.

SECTION 3. The Council determines that no written objection to the proposed
annexation has been filed within fourteen days after the public hearing.

SECTION 4. The City Council hereby extends the city limits by annexing the land
described in Section 1-11.  [number to be assigned by the City Clerk] of the Code of
Ordinances of the City of Columbia, Missouri, which is hereby added to Chapter 1 of the
City Code and which reads as follows:

Section 1-11.__ [number to be assigned by the City Clerk]. July, 2014 Extension
of Corporate Limits.



The corporate limits of the City of Columbia shall include the following
land:

A TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN SECTION 10, TOWNSHIP 47 NORTH,
RANGE 13 WEST, COLUMBIA, BOONE COUNTY, MISSOURI AND BEING
DESCRIBED BY THE QUIT-CLAIM DEED RECORDED IN BOOK 968,
PAGE 34 AND BEING SHOWN BY THE SURVEY RECORDED IN BOOK
2404, PAGE 56 AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS
FOLLOWS:

ALL OF TRACT 2 OF THE SURVEY RECORDED IN BOOK 2404, PAGE 56
AND CONTAINING 131.19 ACRES.

SECTION 5. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to cause three
certified copies of this ordinance to be filed with the Clerk of Boone County, Missouri and
three certified copies with the Assessor of Boone County, Missouri. The City Clerk is
further authorized and directed to forward to the Missouri Department of Revenue, by
registered or certified mail, a certified copy of this ordinance and a map of the City clearly
showing the area annexed to the City.

SECTION 6. The property described in Section 4 is in the Fifth Ward.

SECTION 7. The Zoning District Map established and adopted by Section 29-4 of
the Code of Ordinances of the City of Columbia, Missouri, is hereby amended so that
approximately 128.16 acres of the property described in Section 4 will be zoned and
become a part of District R-1 (One-Family Dwelling District) and approximately 3.0 acres
located on the northwest corner of the tract will be zoned and become a part of District
PUD-4 (Planned Unit Development) with a development density not exceeding four
dwelling units per acre. Hereafter the property zoned PUD-4 may be used for all permitted
uses in District R-3 (Medium Density Multiple-Family Dwelling District).

SECTION 8. The PUD-4 zoning established for the property referenced in Section 7
above, is subject to the condition that the sidewalk along the south side of Route K, east of
the PUD zoned property to the shared boundary of Oak Park Plat 2, shall be constructed
concurrently with the sidewalk on the PUD zoned property.

SECTION 9. The City Council hereby approves the terms and conditions contained
in the statement of intent dated April 28, 2014, attached hereto in substantially the same
form as “Exhibit A” and made a part of this ordinance. The statement of intent shall be
binding on the owners until such time as the Council shall release such limitations and
conditions on the use of the property.

SECTION 10. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage.



PASSED this day of

ATTEST:

City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

City Counselor

, 2014.

Mayor and Presiding Officer
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Please provide the following information, which shall serve as the statement of intent for the
proposed planned district zoning:

1. The uses proposed.

M| allowed USes 10 Dysheet €-3

2. The maximum gross square feet of building floor area proposed. If PUD zoning is requested,
indicate type(s) of dwelling units & accessory buildings, and maximum number of dwelling
units & development density.
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3. The maximum building height proposed.
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4. The minimum percentage of the site to be maintained in open space, shown by the percent in
landscaping and the percent left in existing vegetation.
57. exssho s vegetation Totall 26
151, lendscapin g )
The following items only apply to PUD zoning requests:

5. The total number of parking spaces proposed and the parking ratio per dwelling unit.
Posang shall conborm 4o \he G-Ly of Columbia
Poarein § regulakons.

6. Any amenities proposed, such as swimming pools, golf courses, tennis courts, hiking trails or

club houses. A\ awrd osnenties: Pool, <lhlhhovsz, shaller houss.

7. A general description of the plan including minimum lot sizes, if applicable, minimum building
setbacks from perimeter and interior streets, other property lines and minimum setbacks

between buildings. H\Nma\ b\i\\&\‘.\j S,Q,\.\qck,j shel\ be 20/ Crown
P INY-oftcoes e S
Note: At the discretion of the applicant, the st/znt of intent may include other aspects of

atem
the proposed development.
% /Z//ﬁ/ - Afeslia

Signature of Applicant or Agent Date
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Case # 14-80
The Gates Plat 2 — Annexation, Zoning, Preliminary Plat

AGENDA REPORT
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING
June 5, 2014

SUMMARY

A request by Tim Crockett, Crockett Engineering (agent) to annex 130.76 acres into the City of
Columbia and apply R-1 (One-Family Dwelling District) and PUD-4 {Planned Unit Development) as
permanent zoning, to obtain approval of a 7é-lot preliminary plat fo be known as “The Gates Plat 2"
and be granted a variance to Section 25-47 (Terminal Streets) regarding street length. The subject site
is located at the southeast corner of the intersection of Route K and Oid Plank Road. (Case #14-80)

DISCUSSION

The applicant is requesting permanent R-1 and PUD-4 zoning pending annexation of the subject
property into the City of Columbia. The pending annexation will be considered by City Council at its
July 7 meeting. In addition, the applicant is seeking approval of a preliminary plat that will include 66
buildable residential lots and 10 common lots as well as a variance to Section 25-47 of the subdivision
regulations pertaining to the length of terminal streets. Discussion of each request is addressed below.

Annexation and Permanent Zoning

The site is currently unimproved and vacant, and the maijority of the property is free covered. The Llittle
Bonne Femme Creek crosses through the southeast corner of the property and a tributary crosses the
site from northwest to the southeast.

The current zoning is County A-2 (Agriculture), and the surrounding zoning is a mix of R-1 and County A-2
(Agriculture), which would be consistent with the requested zoning of R-1 for the majority of the
property. Lot 300, located in the northwest cormer of the property, would be rezoned to PUD-4, allowing
up to four residential units per acre of land. This would permit no more than 12 dwelling units on the
property. Per the preliminary plat, access to the PUD portion will be restricted to Old Plank Road and
must be at least 200 feet from the intersection with Route K, which will allow for safe ingress and egress
to the property given the proximity to the intersection of Route K and Old Plank Road.

The applicant has submitted a Statement of Intent (see attached) that will permit all uses in R-3
(Medium Density Multiple-family Dwelling District) on the PUD zoned property and includes a variety of
dwelling options, ranging from single-family attached to multi-family. The proposed PUD site is
encumbered with several development limitations and is considered a suitable candidate for the
flexibility associated with a PUD. The 3-acre piece is removed from the larger R-1 development,
separated by a stream that would require crossing to connect the two. In addition, a é6-foof gas
easement runs through the center of the property, thus limiting the development of that area. The PUD
will allow a more creative approach to the development of the property that will mitigate the
challenges associated with the site.

Staff is recommending as a condition of approval for the PUD zoning, that the sidewalk shown on the
plat to the east of the PUD be constructed concurrently with the sidewalk on the PUD property. This
condition is recommended so no | gap in the sidewalk system is created between the PUD and the
residential subdivision to the east, Oak Park Plat 2. The sidewalk gap property is part of a common lot
(C1) of the preliminary plat that will not be required to install sidewalk until it is final platted. The
applicant has agreed to the condition.

The entire site is located outside of the City's Urban Service Area (USA) as indicated in Columbia
Imagined, which identifies areas that either already have access to, or will have access to the City's
sanitary sewer system within the next five years, according to the Capital Improvement Program.
However, the property is located directly adjacent to and in between two properties that are currently

1



Case # 14-80
The Gates Plat 2 — Annexation, Zoning, Preliminary Plat

within the USA, and the subject property would be a natural addition to the area served by City
services.

The property is identified in Columbia Imagined as a “Neighborhood District”, and the proposed land
use is consistent with that designation. The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding City and
County zoning and should not have a detrimental impact on adjacent properties.

Preliminary Plat, Variance

In addition to the annexation and permanent zoning request, the applicant is requesting a preliminary
plat of subdivision for the approximately 131-acre subject property. The plat would include 66 buildable
residential lots and 10 “common lots”. The “common lots" will be the responsibility of the Home Owners
Association at the time they take control of the properties, and several of the common lots will
accommodate the subdivision's required stormwater management. Lot C1 is approximately 92 acres
and includes a substantial amount of wooded property, flood plain, and the Little Bonne Femme Creek
and its associated fributaries. As a note, the City and the property owner are currently in discussions
regarding the acquisition of a portion of the property by the City for use as a park, which may be
located generally along High Point Lane. At this time, because the issue is ongoing, the property is
shown as a “common lot".

The subject property is contiguous with property currently within the City's municipal boundary to the
north, where it is adjacent to the Oak Park Subdivision, and to the west, where it is adjacent to property
preliminarily platted as The Gates Subdivision, through which it will obtain access by way of Old Plank
Road. A portion of The Gates preliminary plat is under consideration for final approval; however, that
portion would not connect to the subject property at this time. Additional portions of The Gates would
have to be final platted to enable the development of the R-1 portion of the subject property, unless
access is gained through the south connection.

The applicant is requesting approval of a variance to Section 25-47 of the Subdivision Regulations,
which restricts a ferminal street (i.e., cul-de-sac) to no more than 750 feet in length. The applicant has
submitted that the topography of the property creates difficulties in the development of the property,
and that the larger size of the lots, and thus fewer number of lots, would be appropriate in this situation.
The subject property exhibits significant grade change, generally sloping severely downward to the east
into the Liftle Bonne Femme river bottom. The two terminal streets that exceed the maximum length,
Sella Court and Kirby Knowle Drive, are located along ridges that make their connection difficult.
Although the streets could be shortened to comply with the requirement, in this situation the remaining
property would not be able to be developed for residential purposes. Given the amount of *common®
lot area being proposed, and the potential acquisition of part of the property for use as a public park,
staff does not object to the requested variance, which would allow additional development on a
portion of the property.

Staff is recommending as a condition of approval of the preliminary plat, that the applicant grant a 25-
foot utility and access easement along the south side of Old Plank Road and Route K. It would be
located in the same position as the existing 25-foot building line that is currently shown on the plat, and
would be consistent with the same easement granted on The Gates preliminary plat. The easement
would be utilized during future improvement of the roadway. The applicant has agreed to the
condition.

It is worth noting that at the present time, between the proposed lots within The Gates preliminary plat,
and the proposed Gates Plat 2 preliminary plat, there are more lots than could be final platted given
there is only one access point into the subdivision, which is at Old Plank Road. Only 100 final platted lots
are permitted with one access point to a City right of way, and in order to plat all lots within The Gates
subdivision group, an additional access point is required to be constructed at some point in the future.
This access has been granted on The Gates preliminary plat, and it will create a second entrance from
Old Plank Road, further west than the primary access near the Route K intersection.

2
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As part of the preliminary plat, additional right of way has been identified for dedication along Route K,
Old Plank Road, and High Point Lane. Please reference the “"Access” section at the end of this report
for more information on roadway types and required right of way. In addition, per staff's
recommendation, Common Lot D1 has been identified for dedication in the future if the City requires it
for roadway expansion.

RECOMMENDATION

1. Approval of the proposed zoning to R-1 and PUD-4 upon annexation, subject to the condition
that the sidewalk along the south side of Route K east of the PUD zoned property to the shared
boundary of Oak Park Plat 2 be constructed concurrently with the sidewalk on the PUD zoned
property.

2. Approval of the preliminary plat with associated variance to Section 25-47, subject fo the
condition that a 25-foot utility and access easement be granted along Route K and Old Plank
Road.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS

Attachments
¢ Aerial and topographic maps

e Statement of Intent
s 7oning Exhibits
e Preliminary Plat
e Request for variance from applicant
e Plat of Survey
HISTORY
Annexation date Annexation pending approval on June 21, 2014
Existing Zoning District A-2 (Agricultural)
Land Use Plan designation Neighborhood District
Previous Subdivision/Legal Lot Status Not a legal lotf; Land in limits
SITE CHARACTERISTICS
Area (acres) 130.76 acres
Topography Higher elevations to the west, sloping generally to the east into floodway
Vegetation/Landscaping | Heavily wooded, some open area
Watershed/Drainage Little Bonne Femme Creek
Existing structures Sanitary sewer pump station

UTILITIES & SERVICES

Sanitary Sewer City of Columbia

Water Consolidated Public Water Supply District (CPWSD) #1
Fire Protection Columbia Fire Department (upon annexation)
Electric Boone Electric Cooperative
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SURROUNDING ZONING/LAND USE

North R-1 {One-Family Dwelling District) Residential
South County A-2 (Agriculture) Vacant, Commercial
East County A-2 {Agriculture)al) Vacant
West R-1 (One-Family Dwelling District) Residential
ACCESS
Route K
Location North side of site

Major Roadway Plan

Minor Arterial requiring 100° ROW. Additional ROW being dedicated for 50
half width; 30" existing half-width ROW.

CIP projects

None

Old Plank Road

Location

North side of site

Major Roadway Plan

Maijor Collector requiring 100’ ROW for intersection improvements. Full 100’
ROW being dedicated. Road currently maintained by Boone County.

CIP projects

None

High Point Lane

Location

East side of site

Major Roadway Plan

Neighborhood Collector requiring 60' ROW. 30' of ROW being acquired for
half width. Road currently maintained by Boone County.

CIP projects

None

PARKS & RECREATION

Neighborhood Parks

Within the Cascades Park service areaq.

Trails Plan

Proposed location of tertiary Little Bonne Femme Trail through
southeast corner of property.

Bicycle/Pedestrian Plan

No facilities in the area.

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION

All property owners within 200 feet and City-recognized neighborhood associations within 1,000 feet of
the boundaries of the subject property were notified of a public information meeting, which was held

on May 13, 2014.

Public information meeting recap Number of attendees: Three (including applicant and property

owner)
Comments/concerns: Questions regarding infersection
improvements for Route K, Old Plank, and Sinclair

Neighborhood Association(s) Cascades Homes Association; Cascades Neighborhood
nofified Association
Correspondence received None

Report prepared by Clint Smith Approved by Patrick Zenner
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.>Y<. City of Columbia Statement of Intent Worksheet

Please provide the following information, which shall serve as the statement of intent for the
proposed planned district zoning:

1. The uses proposed.

Ml allpwed USes 10 Dsheet €-3

2. The maximum gross square feet of building floor area proposed. If PUD zoning is requested,
indicate type(s) of dwelling units & accessory buildings, and maximum number of dwelling
units & development density.

Duwelings shall be. &ns\%&«ﬁw detached 51\\5\‘&.@&«(\\7 aHacied,
ad tolhi-Loasily. Mastenow du\s'r\«/
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3. The maximum buildihg height proposed.

4. The minimum percentage of the site to be maintained in open space, shown by the percent in
landscaping and the percent left in existing vegetation.

57 exshng vegatadion L 20
151 (eadscapyng Todal: '
The following items only apply to PUD zoning requests:

5. The total number of parking spaces proposed and the parking ratio per dwelling unit.
Parang ghell conform Ho \ha C:;-Ly o £ Colunmlla
ot § r=guladons.

6. Any amenities proposed, such as swimming pools, golf courses, tennis courts, hiking trails or
clubhouses. A\ awed ewventies: Pool, clhhouse, shallec houss.

7. A general description of the plan including minimum lot sizes, if applicable, minimum building
setbacks from perimeter and interior streets, other property lines and minimum setbacks

between buildings. Mava sl m_‘\&c\j S&x-&“d'«} shall b 20/ Crow
3 3‘“‘%"‘*‘1 was WWae s
Note: At the discretion of the applicant, the statement of intent may include other aspects of

the proposed development. A j /
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Signature of Applicant or Agent Date
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NOTES:

1. AL PUBLIC SANTARY SEWER EXTENSIONS SHALL BE MININUM OF 8" DIAVETER. SEWERS NOT CONSTRUCTED ALONG FRONTS OF LOTS TO
BE LOCATED WITHIN 16 FOOT WIDE EASEMENTS OR EASEMENTS EQUAL TO THE DEPTH OF THE SEWER IF SEWER IS GREATER THAN 16
FEET. NO SEWER TAPS WILL BE GREATER THAN 20 FEET.

~

PART OF THS TRACT LIES WITHIN THE 100 YEAR FLOODPLAIN AS ADOPTED BY THE CITY OF COLUMBIA AS SHOWN BY FIRM PANELS
29019C 02250 & 29019C 03550 DATED MARCH 17, 2011.

3. THE STREET R/W SHALL BE 50 FOOT WIDE, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.
4. THERE SHALL BE A 10 FOOT UMUTY EASEMENT ALONG THE SIDE OF EACH LOT ADJACENT TO STREET RIGHT-OF -WAY.

o

NATURAL GAS DISTRIBUTION TO BE DESIGNED BY AMEREN UE.

Ed

WATER DISTRBUTION TO BE DESIGNED BY CONSOUDATED PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY DISTRICT §1 OF BOONE COUNTY.

~

ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION TO BE DESIGNED BY THE BOONE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE.

LOT NUMBERS SHOWN ARE FOR INVENTORY PURPOSES ONLY.

THE EXISTING ZONING OF THIS TRACT IS A-2 (PENDING REZONING TO R-1 AND PUD 4).

N
=3

). THIS PLAT CONTAINS 130.76 ACRES.

. A5’ SIDEWALK SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED ALONG BOTH SIDES OF ALL INTERNAL STREETS. A 5' SIDEWALK SHALL ALSO BE CONSTRUCTED
ADJACENT TO STATE ROUTE K, OLD PLANK ROAD & HIGH POINT LANE AT THE TIME OF FINAL PLATTING OF THE ADJACENT PROPERTY.

5

THIS TRACT IS REGULATED BY THE STREAM BUFFER REQUIREMENTS IN SECTION 12A-230, ARTICLE X OF THE CfTY OF COLUMBIA CODE OF
ORDINANCES. AS SHOWN BY THE JAMESTOWN USGS QUADRANGLE MAP.

13. NO DIRECT DRVEWAY ACCESS SHALL BE ALLOWED ONTO OLD PLANK ROAD FROM ANY LOT EXCEPT FOR LOT 300 & LOT D1. ACCESS TO
LOT 300 & LOT D1 SHALL ONLY BE FROM OLD PLANK ROAD AND MUST BE A MINIMUM OF 200" FROM MO ROUTE K.

=

. NO DIRECT DRIVEWAY ACCESS SHALL BE ALLOWED ONTO NO ROUTE K.

&

| |~ 30" ADDITIONAL RIGHT OF WAY LOT D1 IS INTENDED TO BE GRANTED AS RIGHT-OF-WAY SHOULD THE CITY DESIRE THIS AREA. IF DESIRED, DEVELOPER SHALL GRANT TO
7l CITY AT NO COST. IF THE AREA IS NOT DESIRED THEN THE DEVELOPER RESERVES THE RIGHT TO USE THIS LOT FOR FUTURE

DEVELOPMENT.

16. LOTS C2 - C10 ARE NOT FOR RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT, BUT MAY CONTAIN NEIGHBORHOOD AMENITIES SUCH AS SWINMING POOL,
RESTROOM FACILITIES, RECREATIONAL FACILITIES, SHELTERS, STORM WATER FEATURES, ETC. LOTS C2 - C10 SHALL BE DEEDED TO THE
GATES HOME OWNERS ASSOCIATION.

17. AL LOTS SHALL HAVE A MININUN WIOTH OF 60° AT THE BUILDING LINE.

18. A MINMUM OF 25% OF THE TREES CLASSIFIED AS CLINAX FOREST AND LOCATED ON THIS TRACT SHALL BE PRESERVED. A TREE
TION PLAN SHALL BE SUBMITTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY ARBORIST PRIOR TO LAND DISTURBANCE.

19. NO MORE THAN 100 RESIDENTIAL LOTS SHALL BE PLATTED WITHIN THE GATES DEVELOPMENT BEFORE THE SECOND ENTRANCE (WENTWORTH
DRIVE) SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED.

20. [T IS ANTICIPATED THAT THE FUTURE LITTLE BONNE FEMME CREEK TRAIL IS TO PASS THROUGH THIS PARCEL ON THE NORTH SIDE OF THE
CREEK.

LEGAL DESCRPTION:

A TRACT OF LAND BEING PART OF THE SURVEY RECORDED IN BOOK 2404, PAGE 56 AND BEING PART OF
CLAIN DEED WARRANTY DEED RECORDED IN BOOK 968, PAGE 34 OF

THE LAND DESCRIBED BY THE QUIT
COLUMBIA, BOONE COUNTY, MISSOURI AND CONTAINING, 130.76 ACRES.

OWNER:
JOHN & SUSAN WILLIAMSON
4906 COATS LANE
COLUMBIA, MO 65203

APPROVED BY THE CITY OF COLUMBIA PLANNING AND ZONING
COMMISSION THIS DAY OF 2014,

PREPARED BY:

DR RAMAN PURI

ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS
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ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS

2608 North Stadium Boulevard My 2 4 .
Columbia, Missouri 65202 4
(573) 447-0292
May 21, 2014
Timothy Teddy
Director of Planning and Development
PO Box 6015

Columbia, MO 65205
Mr. Teddy:

On behalf of Tompkins Construction, contract purchaser of The Gates, Preliminary Plat
2, | would like to take this opportunity to request a variance to the City of Columbia
Subdivision Regulations with respect to the maximum length of a terminal street. The
variance being requested is from Section 25-47(a) of the said regulations and is for
Kirby Knowle Drive and Stella Court as shown by the proposed preliminary plat for
said development.

Due to the relatively large size of the lots and the existing terrain of the site, we
believe that a variance for the lengths of these two streets is entirely appropriate.
Each street has fewer lots fronting onto it then would be allowed on a 750-foot long

street with minimal lots widths. We believe that these variances are viable and
appropriate and respectfully request your favorable consideration.

Should you have questions or comments, please feel free to call me.

Sincerely,

Crockett Engineering Consultants, LL.C

J

Tim Crockett, PE

www.crockettengineering.com



LILED FOR KECORD, BOONE COUNTY. MISSOLR | !
B JONSON, RECORDER OF DEEDS :
DESCRIPTION:
l A TRACT OF LAND IN THE WEST HALE OF SEGTION 10, TOWNSHIP 47 NORTH, RANGE [3 WEST IN BOONE
, MI950UK|, SAID TEAGT BEING THAT PART OF SAID WEST HALF LYING SOUTH OF THE K1GHT-OF-WAY
SURVEY FOR: oF STATE ROUTE *K* . T i% FURTHER DESCRIDED AS FOLLOWS:
OLD PLANK VILLAGE
PLAT BOOK 37, PASE 74 BEGINNING AT THE SOUTH QUARTER CORNER OF SAID SECTION 10 AS SHOWN BY SURVEYS IN POOK 392, PAGE
\JOHN 6AM WILL'AM"?ON : 341 AND IN BOOK 778, PAGE 344; THENGE ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SEGTION 10, N 8456  |5°W,
2635.04 FEET TO A FOUND STONE, O TRaT CORVER OF SECTION 10, THENGE ALONE THE WEsT
LINE OF SECTION 10, N O0%4°30°E, 2540.76¢ FEET 10 THE SOUTH LINE OF STATE ROUTE ‘K'i-
IN THE WEST HALE OF SECTION 10, TOUNSHIP 47 NORTH, RANGE |3 WEsT S 67°18°30°E, 5¢. 0% PEET: THENGE ALONG A CURVE TO THE LEFT, 4¢.[4 FEET, THE GHORD
DOONE COUNTY, MIS50UR CURVE DEING ‘> 86°13°30°E, 46,15 FEET; THENGE 5 00'52° 10°W, '180.00 THENGE N 894587 10°E
PECODER. 200 51.60 PEET; THENCE N 0058°00'W, [80.00 FEET; THENCE ALONG A GURVE TO THE LEFT,
! : 37i.54 FEET, THE GHORD OF AID ‘GURVE DEING N 81°47°25°E, 370,54 FeET: THENCE N 74307 40°E,
-\ 1241.00 PEET; THENGE 5 [524°20°E, 5,00 FEET; THENCE N 7430°40°E, 7¢3.70 FECT; THENGE
E e S e T 2 L BT 1o e IRTERIEETION Wit T GOARTER PECTION LINE . THE
/ \\ CHORD OF SAID GURVE BEING N 70716 40'E, 146.17 FEET; THENGE ALONG THE QUARTER SECTION LINE, :
% | _ E 5 0T05°02°E, 5127.53 FEET TO THE FOINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 171.33 ACRES. :
WARRANTY DEED IN DOOK 1940, PAGE 40 / \\ :
o ’s
V4 - \\ SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS OF RECORD.
(V4 d <7 ook 817, PASE 85
R o
2 ;‘ > y J /
SCALE: | *-200° y _1| 2 e ~ \
ARRANTY DEED IN . TED . £
o loo 1200 400 BOOK 1001, PAGE 376 O A - 1433°30° Ve A — .~ _—
Z| K g o\ﬁE R e e 22.007 (ARG s \
= - =T 7= e INE ALONG SURVEY
T DT A KTER SRR F Mo NSe B Q\ = - “20° N | Ve DLk IBED TRACT OF LAND. ARD THe RESOLTS
2ECTION 9-47-13 SHOWN DY A - 01"46°30° oﬁo\) v /-/ 210 E FASBMENT IN DOOK 1577 | OF SAID SURVEY ARE A5 SHOWN ON THE DRAWING. THE
%&gwm;m R - 1462.349 \‘L“ /' ’ 1AGE 498. ! N \ ‘ SUl WAS MADE ANCE WITH THE CURRENT
s TRON P IPE O REDAR ADES Lo~ 4. 14 " . NOT LOCATED) 8 . MISS0UR| MINIMM STANDARDS FOR PROPERTY BOUNDARY
E BXISTING PLAT #2 CH - 9 858137 30°E / N1 1450 \7\ ot NOTE: ] FROG 5 LEAP SLBDIVISION
s P S 8716°30°E 4%.13 // — R16HT-OF-WAY DEED IN sl FLAT POOK 30, FAGE 7 \ |
A RIGHT-OF -WAY MRKR. (FOLND) © 0054°30°W 50,85, - BOOK 147, PAGE 574 3
a STONE (FOUND) 52.92° — £ e o /\_ NJTE:
. POWER POLE (EX!5TING) — - : N7 = — LA OF OVERHELD A U GASLINEONTHE b - —_——
— oLy o . gﬁéﬂ%‘[&% P WST SIPE OF HIGH POINT
—= s | T3z N 1g14-gste  EATDMNT LYE To A POINT 700 FEET
— — 353 TRACT | PLUS OR MINUS SOUTH 0P
E N 0055°50°'W A NUIE CENTERL INE_OF SEWER R K
BOOK 968, PAGE 3¢ | A& 2035 .y - EA 1$ 5° GEST 30,14 ACRES GOT LOCATED? —_—
T = a PROPERTY LINE e
AL Ly ~— T~ 25.00° (REG. § MEAS.) —
OLD PLANK ROAD 4o — 5 [ —
T~ \5 o el . Y NOTE : — -
“ N 945810 - ==x CENTERL Ine or oEWr Easouent 15 —
NOTE : 51.60 : 5 Ny 5 PEET S0UTH OF THE GRAVITY SCWER. .04 ¢ ) IES V. DATCHETT PLS T417
AMEREN UE GASL INE ALONG THE % 0752 10°W \-\ W 90" (EASLRED)
WEST SIDE OF OLD PLANK ROAD 180. N 7¢:47°50°W ) -
(NOT LOCATED) = g ]
) — == — >
. WARRANTY DEED
\\,\ e § 9 514205 IN BOOK 347,
N 1014'05'W \'\_\ — T 1849.94 o1 PAGE 673
el.00 N7 \\ié\ .
A ELECTRIC
5 780 o e LINES STATE OF MISH0UR 1)
N5 2935730 LT £~ T~ COUNTY OF POONE) 72
271.01° . S L T ACCESS ROAD l HDSCRIDED 40 SWORN 10, DEFORE ME A NITARY
BPAS1S OF BEARING N 441'20'5o'w ° ERLINE OF 6C - - %IG IN AN) FOR couNrY AND 5T¢A,ét OoN
THE WEST ORDED 220.%9° o BN | 66 QA S DAY , 2003,
BOOK_ 778, L%e"‘;& ZFUR\TII-EE 5o Sty K \5 790%'25°W EASEMENT IN DOOK 1430, FAGE ¢24 5. .» —_ ‘
RE 222.86 14.87° (RECORD)
— 14.43° (MBASURED) |
g CENTERL INE OF THE 46° GAA.INE EASEMENT
15 53" EAGH 910 OF NATUUL GASLINE A9 /
) LOGATED PY MARKERS (N TH: FIELD. - l
g / i 5
[
- NOTE: —
b3 N THERE 15 A PEIROLEU TRAEMISHION LINE SURVEY IN l
2 B3 YING SOUTH OF THE Na 6A%. INEAND / E BOOK 776, FAGE 344
NOTES s S BONTAINED ITHIN THE 36 EASBMENT .
1.) PROPERTY GLASSIFICATION: SUDURDAN § oly / ] axioT M. 2 - neL o
: 0 .
2.7 PROrEETY DESCEIDES BY A vag s L e / A ‘ MY COMMISSION EXP IRES FEDRUARY 6, 2007
e Sk e e EE TS e oo nemc [/|g
3.) TOTAL TRAGT CONTAINS 171.33 ACRES. Y Rl Hi&H POINT LANE. ? L B
g b (NOT LOCATED) / /
nyp o
(1}
£ 8 TRACT 2 IBEE |
z . o] s
% [31.19 AGRES / oln QUARTER SEGTION LINE A
g / -2 § PER SURVEY IN DO 778, PAE 344 l
o~
— TN
NOTE: / ® -
VATERL INE ALONG TE WEST 51DE : T~ N
OF HIEH POINT LAN:. 20° EASEMENT — ~
N BOOK 454, PAGE 2. / —
. (NOT LOGATED) : L
PROVED FOR I .
OR RECORDING. 2/ /o /// l
Sy s, /1 5
STEN SAVER E S l
~DIRECTOR OF PLANNING ; -
CENTERLINE OF 100° BLUGTRIC /
THABRGUS You e EASEMENT IN POOK 3496, PAGE 736 // I ‘
77 SURVEY IN
/ : BOOK 393, PASE 541 i
FoUND sTone . / !
oF
SECTION 10-47~13 FOlNT OF ‘
R DO oMY ey v 7t \ / / pEGINNING ~\ fonp g A AR
SEC. 4 SEGC. 10 oot . 0.76'W corted in Boow,
< ¥ 1300.24° (RECORD) E > Cownty, Mssourt
— — - / N 4000 00'¥ (30024’ (RE - —_— Date and Tima: 12/08/2003 « 02:10:58 PM
) wec 15 N 8956 15'W  2636.04 ] T\ N 6956°50'W 1244.42° (MEASURED) Instrument #: 2003048488 Book:02404 Page:0056
Grantor. PATCHETY, JAMES V
/ SOUTH QUARTER CORNER OF Grates: WHAANSON,
l 1 SECTIoN |o-47 {5 REPRODUCED o anse
wm/ww DEED IN ‘ FROM SURVEY IN DOOK 776, PAGE 334 e Tpe: 30
BOOK 1528, PASE 234 WARRANTY DEED I Rocwars Fox 2808 .
bl 777 Paet aic WARRANTY DEED iIN PO ben Sonneen Beiorsar of rede “Yzgest
‘ ‘ I BOOK %41, FAGE 313
- ‘ | [ 031114600
VILL {AMSON SURVEY IN SECTION |0’47-13]

DECBVPER 4, 2003




EXCERPTS
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING
JUNE 5, 2014

Case No. 14-80
A request by Tim Crockett, Crockett Engineering (agent) to annex 130.76 acres into the City
of Columbia and apply R-1 (One-Family Dwelling District) and PUD-4 (Planned Unit Development) as
permanent zoning, to obtain approval of a 76-lot preliminary plat to be known as “The Gates Plat 2"
and be granted a variance to Section 25-47 (Terminal Streets) regarding street length. The subject
site is located at the southeast corner of the intersection of Route K and Old Plank Road.
MR. REICHLIN: May we have a staff report, please.
Staff report was given by Mr. Clint Smith of the Planning and Development Department. Staff
recommends:
e Approval of R-1 and PUD-4 rezoning.
e Approval of Preliminary Plat and variance from Section 25-47, subject to the condition that
a 25-foot utility and access easement be granted along Route K and Old Plank Road.
MR. REICHLIN: Are there any questions of the staff? All right. Mr. Strodtman?
MR. STRODTMAN: [I've got a couple. When you said common lots, the property to the east of the
residential, is that just land that will not be developed?
MR. SMITH: Well, | can let the applicant speak to that, as well, but | can say that | believe the City

has been in discussions with the property owner to possibly secure some of that property as a-- as a public

park.

MR. STRODTMAN: Okay.

MR. SMITH: To my knowledge, at this time, that has not been concluded, but that would be a
possibility.

MR. STRODTMAN: Okay.

MR. SMITH: The common lots, though, in general, yes, would be left open.

MR. STRODTMAN: Or the rest of the residential that's to the west --

MR. SMITH: Yeah. Typically, with common lots, they're dedicated to like a homeowners'
association --

MR. STRODTMAN: Okay.

MR. SMITH: -- or something along those lines.

MR. STRODTMAN: Okay. And then was there any -- | assume a traffic -- something was done,
some traffic on the Old Plank that all of this new residential will be handled through that one exit. Correct?
Oris --

MR. SMITH: Through -- yes. The -- all the access, and you kind of bring up a good point with this



development. This pertains to something | mentioned in the staff report, but didn't touch on in the -- in the
presentation. All the access will be at this one point on Old Plank. The traffic engineering team has
reviewed it and part of that was the -- the request for the additional dedication of right-of-way along Old
Plank for -- it would be 100-foot right-of-way to accommodate the future upgrading of that road potentially.
Right now, Old Plank is, | believe, under the jurisdiction of Boone County, so that was something that would
need to be addressed in the future. But according -- or in relation to that question, | can tell you that given
the fact that this property right now in the final platting of the piece to the west, all that is going through one
access point on Old Plank right now. They would not be permitted to plat more than 100 lots at that one
access. At that point, they would need to construct a second access to further develop this property and
any other property that uses the one access on Old Plank.

MR. STRODTMAN: So the new residential has no intentions on having a future access --

MR. SMITH: The piece we're discussing how --

MR. STRODTMAN: -- other -- other than what is shown?

MR. SMITH: They show -- as far as the preliminary plat, they showed two access related to this
piece, and that would be through the piece to the -- to the west, and that piece does show two access
points on Old Plank. If they -- again, if they exceed that 100-piece or 100-lot platting, that second access
would need to be constructed.

MR. STRODTMAN: Okay.

MR. SMITH: And they are showing a connection for this piece to the property to the south, too,
which is consistent with connecting and having a connected network of roadways for future development,
so we could jump back to that. To the south here, you see the -- the road stubs to the property to the south
at some point could be constructed and possibly another access point to a right-of-way.

MR. STRODTMAN: Thank you.

MR. REICHLIN: Are there any other questions of the staff? Seeing none, we'll open the public
hearing. Just to briefly review, we would appreciate you coming to the podium and giving us your name
and address. If there is an organized proponent and/or opposition, please state that. You will be allowed a
six-minute time frame. All other people coming to the podium will be allowed a three-minute time frame.
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED

MR. CROCKETT: Mr. Reichlin, members of the Commission, my name is Tim Crockett with
Crockett Engineering, 2608 North Stadium. And | think Mr. Smith did a pretty good job giving the overview.
Again, staff report of this project is very thorough. | would like to talk about a couple points. Specifically,
Mr. Strodtman, let's talk about the traffic issues here a little bit. Traffic engineers did look at this
development. This would be in conjunction with the regulations for normal residential development for the
City of Columbia. We do have two access points coming from the development that is to the west. The
owner of that property and the developer of that property is the same -- the same as the applicant for this
development, so they are being developed in conjunction with each other. There are limitations on this
preliminary plat that would dictate the number of lots that we could maximize total before we need that

second entrance point installed for -- for access purposes. Furthermore, we are -- we have talked to



traffic engineering and there are improvements on Old Plank Road that -- offsite improvements that we are -
- that we are installing, basically, turn lanes and some additional work down in that area for those access
points, so that is in conjunction with the development of this property. Mr. Strodtman, you also asked about
the common land -- common ground to the east. We are in and have been in in-depth conversations with
city officials to see if we can't work an agreement out so that can become a city park. It's the neighborhood
of 90 to 100 acres in size. It's a sizable area. There's a great interest on the Parks to acquire that type of
property in this area. There's a little pocket neighborhood park across from our proposed PUD-4 that's
actually zoned commercial up adjacent to the Cascades development. What we want to do is we want to
drop down -- and that's the stem that Mr. Smith kind of talked about that -- well, he wants to assure that
there's some sort of sidewalk connection between the PUD and Oak Park. That little stem gives access
from the neighborhood park in the Cascades to the potential park that -- that we're talking about here.
Again, we're talking somewhere being between 90 to 100 acres. The area between our lots back -- that our
lots back up -- back up to, those will be common lots that will be owned by the homeowners' association
and maintain by the homeowners. We would -- you know, if the City so desired to have that portion as a
city park, we would be happy to give it to them. However, they have indicated they would rather have that
to be under HOA control as opposed to City control, which -- which we're fine with. Talk about the utilities a
little bit. All the utilities are -- are adjacent to the side. | will add that the current landowner that is selling
the property, he was a contributor to the sewer improvements for this area, specifically the Cascades pump
station, the gravity line, and the forced main to serve this whole area. He was a contributor to that, and
acquired capacity for this property about 12 years ago, so he made a substantial amount of contribution 12
years ago for development such as this. And since that time, the City has gone through and actually has
increased capacity for future development in the area to help out -- take out some point discharges that the
County had, so it was kind of a joint effort there and we think that was beneficial, as well. Talk about the
variance a little bit, and we -- it is a variance for the length of cul-de-sac. However, this is very similar to
other requests of similar nature on numerous developments all over town, so you have seen those before,
and | don't think that's anything out of the -- out of the ordinary. With that, | would be happy to answer any
guestions the Commission may have.

MR. REICHLIN: Any questions of this speaker? Thank you, sir. Anybody else wishing to speak on
this matter, either for or against? We have somebody coming from the back.

MR. LEOPARD: I'm Mike Leopard; I live on 7560 South High Point. And if they are talking -- the
-- a street light would be nice on the turn there. It's a really bad turn coming off High Point. | don't know if it
even affects, you know, totally a subdivision, but if they put a park there -- and they're talking about that, it's
just real dark there, really quick, sharp turn on High Point off of K, so a street light with -- for the City just to
put in their consideration, that's all. | live right down the road there and it would be nice. There's a lot of
traffic on there with a really, really bad sharp turn, so that was all. Just a street light or maybe some street
lights up and down there. That was all. Thanks.

MR. REICHLIN: Questions of this speaker? Seeing none. Thank you.

MR. ALBERT: Can | ask that High Point Lane be —



MR. REICHLIN: Would you -- would you-- would you care to come to the podium, please?

MR. ALBERT: Okay. On the -- I'm trying to understand the map.

MR. REICHLIN: Can we go through the --

MR. ALBERT: Kurt Albert, 400 High Point Lane. I'm trying to understand where is High Point on
this map, and | don't -- | can't --

MR. SMITH: Look at the screen, and | can show it to you.

MR. ALBERT: All right.

MR. SMITH: It's basically right along this edge. It's the -- forms the -- kind of the western boundary
of this property we're talking about.

MR. ALBERT: Okay. All right.

MR. SMITH: Sorry. Eastern boundary, yes.

MR. ALBERT: Thank you.

MR. REICHLIN: Anybody else wishing to speak on this matter? Seeing no one, I'll close the public
hearing.

PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED

MR. REICHLIN: Comments of Commissioners, please?

MR. TILLOTSON: I just have a --

MR. REICHLIN: Ms. Burns?

MS. BURNS: 1 think the staff did a great job on presenting this and | appreciate Mr. Crockett's
remarks. I'm excited that the property developer is considering a park or working with the City to develop a
park there. | think that that would be a wonderful use and an addition to this development, so | like to hear
that.

MR. TILLOTSON: | would we go about Mike's comment on the street light? Who -- could that be
looked into or is it that -- a study done on that?

MR. SMITH: Yeah. We can bring that up to our traffic team, | think, or Water & Light. We'll bring it
up to somebody at staff and see what the process would be to have that corner looked at.

MR. REICHLIN: Mr. Lee?

MR. LEE: Question for Staff. Mr. Smith?

MR. SMITH: I'm sorry.

MR. LEE: Who would -- who would be responsible for putting in that street light, the City or the
developer?

MR. SMITH: That's what -- just what we were -- with the street light? At the intersection of Route
K and High Point would actually be outside of this development, so I'm guessing at this point, it probably
would be the City or perhaps the County, depending on who has control of the roadway at that location. So
that's something we would have to get more information on, | think.

MR. LEE: Thank you.

MR. REICHLIN: Is there anybody else?

MR. SMITH: It could also be Boone Electric -- excuse me.



MR. REICHLIN: Is there anybody else? Now, what are we -- with this matter, we have to have two
motions?

MR. SMITH: That is correct.

MR. REICHLIN: One for the annexation?

MR. SMITH: One would be for the rezoning to the R-1 and PUD-4 upon annexation, and the other
would be the approval of the preliminary plat with the associated variances -- or sorry -- associated one
variance. Both of those would have a condition, and | could -- | could, you know, rephrase those two if you
would like. The condition for the zoning approval was for the installation of a sidewalk concurrently with the
sidewalk installation on the PUD portion, and the condition on the preliminary plat was for the granting of
additional easements.

MR. REICHLIN: Okay.

MR. STRODTMAN: [I'll go ahead and make a stab at the first motion. And for ltem 14-80, a
rezoning to R-1 and PUD-4 with the condition that the sidewalk along the south side of Route K east of the
PUD zoned property to the shared boundary of Oak Park Plat 2 be constructed concurrently with the
sidewalk on the PUD -- PUD-zoned property.

MR. STANTON: Second.

MR. REICHLIN: Mr. Stanton seconds. Roll call, please?

MR. STRODTMAN: Yes. Mr. Vice Chair.

Roll Call Vote (Voting “yes” is to recommend approval.) Voting Yes: Ms. Burns, Mr. Lee,
Ms. Loe, Mr. Reichlin, Mr. Stanton, Mr. Strodtman, Mr. Tillotson, Ms. Russell. Motion carries 8-0.

MR. STRODTMAN: The motion to -- for approval has been -- will be forwarded to City Council.

MR. REICHLIN: Now we need a motion on the preliminary plat and the variances. Correct?

MR. SMITH: Correct.

MR. REICHLIN: And anybody care to take a stab at that?

MR. TILLOTSON: I'll take a stab at it.

MR. REICHLIN: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Tillotson.

MR. TILLOTSON: I'll make a motion to approve under Case 14-80, a request by Crockett
Engineering for permanent zoning of a 76-lot preliminary plat to be known as “Gates Plat 2,” and be granted
a variance to Section 25-47 with the recommendation that the preliminary plat associated with the variance
25-47 subject to the condition that the 25-foot utility and access easement be granted along Route K and
Old Plank Road.

MR. LEE: Second.

MR. REICHLIN: Seconded by Mr. Lee. Take a roll call, please.

MR. STRODTMAN: Yes, sir. A vote for yes is for ltem 14-80.

Roll Call Vote (Voting “yes” is to recommend approval.) Voting Yes: Ms. Burns, Mr. Lee,
Ms. Loe, Mr. Reichlin, Mr. Stanton, Mr. Strodtman, Mr. Tillotson, Ms. Russell. Motion carries 8-0.

MR. STRODTMAN: Motion to City Council -- it will be moved to City Council.





